
 

 

Town of Weaverville 
Planning Board 

Regular Monthly Meeting 
Tuesday, April 2, 2024, 6:00pm 

Agenda 
 

              Pg# 
1. Call to Order …………………………………………………………………         Chairman Pace  
  
2. Adoption of Agenda ……………………………………………………….             Chairman Pace 
 
3. Approval of Minutes – 3/7/2024 Regular Meeting ………….              2  Chairman Pace  
 
4. 75 Cole Road Zoning Request  ………………………………………..          5            Planning Director Eller 
 
5. Sign Regulations ……………………………………………………………. 17 Attorney Jackson & 
          Planning Director Eller 
 
6. Short Term Rentals ………………………………………………………..  32 Planning Director Eller 
     
7.           Adjournment ………………………………………………………………….  Chairman Pace 



Town of Weaverville 
Planning Board 

Thursday, March 7, 2024 
Meeting Minutes  

The Planning Board of the Town of Weaverville met for a regularly scheduled monthly meeting 
at 6:00pm on Thursday, March 7, 2024.  

Present: Chair Bob Pace, Vice Chair Jane Kelley and Board Members Mark Endries, Donna 
Mann Belt, and Stefanie Pupkiewicz Busch. Alternate members present Ryan Gagliardi and 
Michelle Rippon. 

Staff Present: Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, Planning Director 
James Eller, Town Clerk Tamara Mercer and Land of Sky Regional Council Planner, Kayla 
DiCristina. 

1. Call to order

Chairman Pace called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

2. Adoption of Agenda

Without objection, Mr. Pace declared the agenda approved. Carried unanimously. 5-0. 

3. Approval of the Regular Meeting Minutes February 6, 2024

Ms. Mann questioned the minutes; she said the topic regarding the density concerns in the 
Reems Creek area by majority consensus of Planning Board members were discussed in 
February.  Mr. Gagliardi said this was stated in the February minutes on page 4 and addressed 
in the recommendation letter presented to Council and signed by Chairman Pace and was 
noted by Attorney Jackson. 

Without objection Chairman Pace declared the meeting minutes approved as presented for 
February 6, 2024. Carried unanimously. 5-0. 

4. STR (short-term rentals) Engagement Report and Presentation

Land of Sky Regional Council Planner, Kayla DiCristina 

Ms. DiCristina provided the Land of Sky Regional Council presentation: ‘Let’s Talk about Short-
term Rentals’. She reviewed the background of the topic and noted the Town began addressing 
the short-term rental question in 2023. Town Manager Coffey by authority of Town Council 
contracted Land of Sky Regional Council to facilitate these public input sessions. The goal was 
to identify community concerns and issues, and to be pro-active in planning. 

She reviewed the timeline of the public engagement sessions with the community. The process, 
results and key takeaways, and highlights in the report analysis, such as population changes in 

2



increase of population, age, child-dependency ratio, median value of homeownership, housing 
stock, income, and affordable housing. Ms. DiCristina explained the working age population 
composition and trend changes in age brackets and in the quantitative data. 

Key Takeaways: 
• Weaverville’s population composition is aging.
• Housing affordability is a national issue compounded by local factors such as there are

not enough housing units for the demand.
• It is unclear whether short-term rentals contribute to housing affordability, and housing

stock. Portions of the community have preemptive concerns regarding short-term
rentals.

• Short-term rental owners and operators who engage directly with neighbors and
communities are viewed more positively.

• Short-term rentals have positive economic impact on Weaverville’s local businesses.
Tourism is a local economic driver.

• Community solutions may be effective in resolving STR issues.
• The Town cannot regulate land use based on ownership.

In response to Chairman Pace’s question regarding the ACS (American Consumer Survey), Ms. 
DiCristina explained the five-year period for data collection in the major metropolitan areas, 
demographics, housing construction, etc., which provides evidence that we are losing the 
younger generations. She reviewed the increase in housing values and housing availability and 
affordability for the demographics and how it compares with rest of the nation. Housing values 
increased although western North Carolina has a greater demand for housing.  

There was discussion of Weaverville as a tourist destination, implementing regulations, 
strategies as other municipalities are implementing regulations, table of uses in the code, and 
parking issues. 

It was noted that the Short-term Rental Engagement report would be presented by Planner, 
Kayla DiCristina to the Town Council at the March 25th regular Town Council meeting. 

Chairman Pace consulted Attorney Jackson and she said the Planning Board may take a 
preliminary vote or straw poll on whether the Board would like to see STRs regulated or if we 
prefer that STRs remain unregulated. This preliminary choice is between regulation or no 
regulation.  

There was general consensus that in order to gage the Planning Board members, the alternate 
members may participate in the straw poll. 

Attorney Jackson clarified that the Code of Ordinances currently addresses parking, noise and 
nuisance abatement, and governs short-term rental uses and all zoning table of uses.  

Ms. Rippon was concerned that Weaverville will become a haven for short-term rentals if other 
towns such as Woodfin has very restrictive regulations. In response to Chairman Pace’s 
question, Mr. Eller said it appears Buncombe County is holding a public hearing on short-term 
rentals on April 22, 2024.   

Manager Coffey said enforcement is the issue with regulations. She added that if a 
recommendation is to regulate short-term rentals, then it is appropriate to add enforcement. 

3



 
 
 
Chairman Pace called the question as to those in favor of regulating short-term rentals. Vice 
Mayor Chair Kelley, Mr. Endries, Ms. Mann Belt, Ms. Pupkiewicz, and Ms. Rippon voted ‘aye’ 
and Chairman Pace, and Mr. Gagliardi voted ‘nay’. 5-2 in favor of regulating short-term rentals.  
 
Attorney Jackson stated Staff will present the Planning Board straw poll to Town Council at the 
March 25th meeting.  
 
Manger Coffey stated the Town is in discussion with the Buncombe County Manager as they are 
using Granicus as a monitoring tool. The County has the same concerns regarding enforcement 
as the costs are challenging. 
 
5. Other Business 
 
Mr. Eller reviewed a request regarding annexation. He said the request was withdrawn for 
tonight, but staff anticipates the application brought before the Board for April. 
  
There being no further business and without objection Chairman Pace requested adjournment. 
 
Without objection Mr. Endries moved to adjourn the meeting at 6:45 p.m. Carried Unanimously. 
5-0 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Tamara Mercer, Town Clerk 

4



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
PLANNING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: April 2, 2024 

SUBJECT: Zoning Map Amendment – +/-22 Acres at 75 Cole Road 

PRESENTER:  Planning Director 

ATTACHMENTS: Zoning Map Amendment Application, Property Tax Map Showing 
Property to be Annexed, Voluntary Annexation Resolution, Staff 
Report, Resolution Regarding Development in Growth Areas 

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

Roger Spittle has submitted a voluntary annexation petition seeking to have +/- 22 acres located 
at 75 Cole Road annexed into the Town of Weaverville. The purpose of the annexation appears to 
be to obtain Town services, including water, to support the development of 220 residential units 
that are proposed on the property. 

The petitioners are requesting an initial zoning designation of R-12. 

Town Council has sent the initial zoning request to the Planning Board for review and 
recommendation.  

PLANNING BOARD ACTION REQUESTED: 

A motion establishing a recommendation to Town Council on the initial zoning of R-12 for the 
property at 75 Cole Road based upon consistency with the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use 
Plan and the reasonableness of the zoning request.  

5



6



7



8



RESOLUTION CONCERNING VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION PETITION 
SUBMITTED BY ROGER SPITTLE FOR 75 COLE ROAD 

WEAVERVILLE ANNEXATION NO. 2024-3 

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of that property located at 75 Cole 
Road and bearing Buncombe County Parcel Identification Number 9743-35-2359 was 
received from Roger Spittle; and 

WHEREAS, N.C. Gen. Stat. §§ 160A-31 and 160A-58.2 provide that the sufficiency of 
the petition shall be investigated by the Town Clerk before further annexation proceedings 
may take place; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Weaverville is also in receipt of an application for a zoning 
map amendment request for an R-12 zoning classification for the property to be annexed; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Weaverville deems it advisable to 
proceed in response to this request for annexation and initial zoning; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of 
Weaverville that: 

1. With the assistance of the Town Attorney, the Town Clerk is hereby directed to
investigate the sufficiency of the above-reference petition and to certify to Town
Council the result of her investigation; and

2. The Town Planner is directed to place the application for initial zoning of R-12 on
the next regular meeting of the Weaverville Planning Board’s so that the Board can
review the requested zoning for consistency with the Town’s Comprehensive Land
Use Plan and forward a recommendation to Town Council prior to or at a public
hearing that may subsequently be held on this matter.

THIS the 26th day of February, 2024. 

_________________________________________________________ 
PATRICK FITZSIMMONS, Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

_________________________________________________________ 
TAMARA MERCER, Town Clerk 

9



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina
Preliminary Staff Report: 
75 Cole Road
Zoning Map Amendment

Prepared March, 2024

Sources: Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan; Town of Weaverville Fact 
Sheet; Resolution Concerning Growth Areas

Page 1 of 2

Zoning Analysis

Town Council is set to consider a voluntary annexation of a parcel near the intersection of Cole 
Road and Clarks Chapel Road. This parcel at 75 Cole Road consists of approximately 22 acres as 
shown on the voluntary annexation petition and zoning map amendment application and an 
initial zoning of R-12 is desired. With the acreage present and the density permitted within the 
desired zoning district the Town may expect a maximum of 264 dwelling units in a multifamily 
configuration under these conditions.

Comprehensive Land Use Plan and Resolution Regarding Growth Areas Compliance

When considering compliance with the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan (CLUP), often the 
analysis begins with a consultation of the future land use map. This future land use map is 
adopted as a part of the CLUP to provide guidance for the categories of uses expected within 
the geographic areas of the Town and along Town borders. Here it is found that the property in 
question falls within growth area 4 and borders growth area 3 as shown in the CLUP and 
Growth Area Resolution.

Within this resolution certain land uses were identified as desirable for the I-26 Corridor area 
and commercial development (especially medical services such as healthcare facilities and 
medical offices, small general retail, restaurants and hotels) were specifically enumerated. 
Within the neighboring Ollie Weaver Road area the desirable land uses of single family 
residential development, duplexes, and commercial development (especially those supporting 
residential neighborhoods) were specifically enumerated.

Since multifamily residential development is not specifically enumerated in the resolution 
concerning growth areas, it may be appropriate for the Board to consider the intensity of the 
uses enumerated, such as healthcare facilities, restaurants and hotels, and consider an analysis 
of whether the intensity of these land uses is compatible. 

The R-12 zoning district which is being requested will accommodate high density multifamily 
residential development at a density of twelve units per acre and mixed-use development 
which will accommodate both residential and commercial uses. 

10



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina
Preliminary Staff Report: 
75 Cole Road
Zoning Map Amendment

Prepared March, 2024

Sources: Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan; Town of Weaverville Fact 
Sheet; Resolution Concerning Growth Areas

Page 2 of 2

Reasonableness of the Zoning Request

When conducting its review of proposed zoning map amendments, the planning board shall, as 
part of its plan consistency statement or separately, provide a statement analyzing the 
reasonableness of the proposed rezoning. Such analysis should consider, among other factors: 
(i) the size, physical conditions, and other attributes of the area proposed to be rezoned; (ii) the 
benefits and detriments to the landowners, the neighbors, and the surrounding community; (iii) 
the relationship between the current actual and permissible development on the tract and 
adjoining areas and the development that would be permissible under the proposed 
amendment; (iv) why the action taken is in the public interest; and (v) any changed conditions 
warranting the amendment. If the zoning map amendment qualifies as a large scale rezoning 
the analysis of reasonableness may address the overall rezoning.

Other Considerations

Sewer service will be a large contributing factor for the development of the I-26 Corridor area
and Ollie Weaver Road area moving forward. Under current conditions, public sewer service 
largely does not exist in these areas. 

In order to support the more intense specifically enumerated uses, such as healthcare facilities, 
restaurants and hotels, sewer service will be a necessity. For this proposed project to come to 
fruition, sewer service will be provided to the west side of I-26, offering a potential connection 
point for other properties in growth areas 3 and 4. 

11



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
AMENDED AND RESTATED RESOLUTION REGARDING 
DEVELOPMENT WITHIN IDENTIFIED GROWTH AREAS 

WHEREAS, on December 13, 2022, Town Council adopted a resolution 
concerning identified growth areas, and, in a review of said resolution it was noted 
that the compatible uses within the growth areas did not include R-2, and that was an 
oversight;  

WHEREAS, municipal growth through annexation is essential to sound urban 
development and continued economic stability in the Town of Weaverville; and 

WHEREAS, managing growth by extending municipal services makes sense 
and annexation of properties ensures that new development is built to Town of 
Weaverville standards;  

WHEREAS, influencing where and what commercial development occurs 
within the Weaverville area and providing balanced residential development is 
desirable to the Town of Weaverville; 

WHEREAS, the Town of Weaverville would like to see growth that is well-
designed and that complements the development that is already within the Town;   

WHEREAS, the Town of Weaverville has identified certain properties along its 
municipal borders as having a high likelihood of development due to the presence of 
public water and sewer and has identified them as growth areas as described below; 

WHEREAS, the Town wishes to indicate its willingness to consider the 
voluntary annexation of the properties included within these growth areas and to 
inform the public of the types of development that the Town believes is consistent 
with its Comprehensive Land Use Plan and reasonable when considering the 
surrounding area; 

WHEREAS, Town Council now wishes to amend and restated such resolution; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Weaverville Town Council hereby 
declares and resolves as follows: 

1. The Town has identified the following growth areas which are now shown on
the Town’s GIS map, a copy of which is attached hereto:

a. Growth Area 1 – Gill Branch Valley Area
b. Growth Area 2 – Monticello Road West Area
c. Growth Area 3 – Ollie Weaver Road Area
d. Growth Area 4 – I-26 Corridor
e. Growth Area 5 – Reems Creek Road Area

2. The Town is likely to favorably consider voluntary annexation petitions
received for the properties shown within these growth areas. It is noted,
however, that some development, especially in Growth Area 3, may best
proceed without annexation as the provision of municipal services may be
difficult in certain locations and some areas may be ineligible for annexation

12



2

by the Town of Weaverville due to legal requirements regarding satellite 
annexation. 

3. The following is valued, and as proposed development is considered on these
properties, the Town would like to see an emphasis on:

a. Great streets and gathering places, where the pedestrian is prioritized;
b. Connections between adjoining developments and to gathering places;
c. Walkability through the installation of sidewalks, greenways, and other 

multi-modal trails, especially those that will connect to the existing or
planned pedestrian network within Weaverville;

d. Preservation of natural spaces for public use;
e. Establishment of open spaces that provides recreational opportunities

in the form of greenways, playing fields and/or playgrounds;
f. Protection of streams and creeks;
g. Preservation of mature trees and planting of street trees;
h. Landscape buffering and screening to protect views;
i. Reduction of stormwater runoff which threatens our water quality;
j. Energy conservation measures, such as EV charging stations and solar;
k. Inclusion of commercial uses that support compatible development.

4. Consistent with Town Council’s prior discussions and consensus, the following
uses of land are found to be compatible with the Town’s adopted
Comprehensive Land Use Plan and its Future Land Use Map, and may be
desirable within Growth Area 1 [Gill Branch Valley Area]:

a. mixed use development;
b. single family residential development;
c. duplexes;
d. townhouses;
e. multifamily development;
f. commercial development (especially those supporting residential

neighborhoods such as small general retail, restaurants, professional
services).

These uses are most consistent with the following zoning districts: R-1, R-2, R-
3, R-12, C-2, and conditional district zoning. 

5. Consistent with Town Council’s prior discussions and consensus, the following
uses of land are found to be compatible with the Town’s adopted
Comprehensive Land Use Plan and Future Land Use Map, and may be desirable 
within Growth Area 2 [Monticello Road West Area]:

a. mixed use development;
b. single family residential development;
c. duplexes;
d. townhouses;

13



3

e. commercial development (especially those supporting residential
neighborhoods such as small general retail, restaurants, professional
services).

These uses are consistent with the following zoning districts: R-1, R-2, R-3, C-
2, and conditional district zoning.   

6. The following uses of land are found to be compatible with the Town’s adopted 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan and its Future Land Use Map, and may be
desirable within Growth Area 3 [Ollie Weaver Road Area]:

a. single family residential development;
b. duplexes;
c. commercial development (especially those supporting residential

neighborhoods).

These uses are consistent with the following zoning districts: R-1, R-2, R-3, C-
2, and conditional district zoning.  

7. The following uses of land are found to be compatible with the Town’s adopted 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan and its Future Land Use Map, and may be
desirable within Growth Area 4 [I-26 Corridor]:

a. commercial development (especially medical services such as
healthcare facilities and medical offices, small general retail,
restaurants, hotels).

These uses are most consistent with the following zoning districts: C-2, and 
conditional district zoning. 

8. The following uses of land are found to be compatible with the Town’s adopted 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan and its Future Land Use Map, and may be
desirable within Growth Area 5 [Reems Creek Road Area]:

a. mixed use development;
b. single family residential development;
c. duplexes;
d. townhouses;
e. multifamily development;
f. commercial development (especially those supporting residential

neighborhoods such as small general retail, restaurants, professional
services).

These uses are most consistent with the following zoning districts: R-1, R-2, R-
3, R-12, C-2, and conditional district zoning. 

9. The Town is willing to support compatible development within these growth
areas by considering approval of public water requests for such development
if current or anticipated capacity is available and such approval is in the best
interest of the Town and/or its water system.

14



4 

10. Town Council’s recommended procedure for approvals is for property owners
to present voluntary annexation petitions either prior to or simultaneously
with a water request and zoning request. Some deviations from this
recommendation are anticipated in situations where a property is ineligible
for municipal annexation or where provision of municipal services will prove
difficult.

11. Nothing herein is binding on the Town of Weaverville and the review and
approval of all annexation petitions, land use applications, and water
extension or commitment requests will be made in Town Council’s discretion
following procedures as required by North Carolina law and local ordinance.

ADOPTED this the 23rd day of October, 2023.

PATRICK FITZSIMMONS, Mayor 

TAMARA MERCER, Town Clerk 

15



FU
TU

RE
 L

AN
D

 U
SE

 M
AP

 W
IT

H
GR

OW
TH

 A
RE

AS

16



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

PLANNING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 

Date of Meeting: Tuesday, April 2, 2024 

Subject: Legal Compliance of Sign Regulations 

Presenter:  Planning Director / Town Attorney 

Attachments: Sign Litigation: A Brief Analysis of Reed v. Town of Gilbert, and 
On-Premises and Off-Premises Signs: An Update from the U.S. 
Supreme Court 

Description: 

The current goals of the Comprehensive Land Use Plan (CLUP), last updated in November 
2023, call for the “review of sign regulations for legal compliance and policy objectives” 
with a priority of 1 (highest) priority within the CLUP.  Goals given a 1 priority carry an 
expectation of being addressed within one year. 

A couple court cases, City of Austin v. Reagan National Advertising of Austin, LLC and Reed v. 
Town of Gilbert, have caused jurisdictions across the country to examine their sign 
ordinances for regulations that have now been deemed illegal or unconstitutional. Staff is 
aware of some regulations which must be deleted or amended and has begun the work of 
identifying required text amendments to ensure legal compliance and presentation to the 
Planning Board for review, comment, and recommendation to Town Council.  

Action Requested: 

No action is requested at this time. It is anticipated that the Board will be presented with 
proposed text amendments related to sign regulations at their regular May meeting.   

17



������������	�
� ��������������������������������������� �!�����"�#����$�%�����&�%������'%���(���"�����)������!

*��+����(����������,�(���,��-�.�-/����$�������$�$#���$�������$��$����$�$��!�$��$��#���� ���

�01123455678983:39;:<86:=><5?@AB5@C53D;8EFD1D;71D98E7EGHD=IE787FJ3D3E9IEH==>EKE19L8E9IE;DFG=H15

M92JHD;01�N�?@@O�19�PH=3=81�Q6099F�9I�R9K=H8S=81�71�10=�T8DK=H3D1J�9I�U9H10�M7H9FD87:VWXY�Z[\YX][�̂Y[Y�_̀ àX[Y�bcd�YXeXfbg�][_Wc̀ f̀hX[Y�]̀�̂cd[gY]bcd�iXYX]̀g�[jk[gX[c_[Yl�mnŶXch�]WXY�Z[\YX][o�ǹ �̂_̀cY[c]�]̀�pqrsrWbk[f�tXffuY�_̀ àX[�̂Ybh[�Xc�b__̀gdbc_[�ZX]W�]W[XgvgXib_n�q̀ ]X_[l
18



������������	�
� ��������������������������������������� �!�����"�#����$�%�����&�%������'%���(���"�����)������!

*��+����(����������,�(���,��-�.�-/����$�������$�$#���$�������$��$����$�$��!�$��$��#���� ���

0123456�027175�80�91:2;�<1=4>7?473�92@ABCDEFGHIJ�KLMNOMOPQBRGST�UVWHJ�QIVW�XSYHDVIZ[\]̂ _̀àb�bàc�defgd�à\�d̂ ègfegf�ĥ�aii�à_hgc�j_kgl�[_kg�m_hgmei�kagjd�j_�̀\chm\�jn\�mihjj\̀o�phjaid_�kagjd�j_�̀\d̂\mj�jn\�q̀\\�d̂\\mn�̀efnjd�_q�jn\�m_]]hgejbl�r_hgmei�ed�m_gdec\̀egf�g\k�̀hi\d�jnaj�keiiaii_k�stuvtwxy�zwxyz�ch̀egf�\i\mje_g�d\ad_go�{|{y}�zwxyz�kejneg�a�cab�_q�jn\�\~\gjo�agc�w�{���xwst�zwxyz�agbje]\l��j�d\\]d�ie�\�a�̀\ad_gapi\�paiagm\�aii_kegf�jn\�defgd�phj�ie]ejegf�jn\]�j_�a�̀\i\~agjje]\�q̀a]\l�rag�jn\�j_kg�d�̀\fhiaje_gd�cedjegfhedn�a]_gf�defgd�jned�kab���̀\m\gj��l�l��ĥ \̀]\�r_h̀j�c\mede_g�dabd�g_l��hmn�cedjegmje_gd�à\�hgm_gdjejhje_gai�m_gj\gj�pad\c\̀fhiaje_g�_q�d̂\\mnl[_�p\�mi\ào�\~\̀b�defg�_̀cegagm\�cedjegfhedn\d�a]_gf�defgdl��̀cegagm\d�m_]]_gib�cedjegfhednp\jk\\g�i_maje_gd��m_]]\̀meai�̂̀_̂\̀jbo�̀\dec\gjeai�̂̀_̂\̀jbo�̂hpiem�̂̀_̂\̀jbo�\jml�o�p\jk\\g�jb̂\d�_qdefgd��q̀\\�djagcegfo�kaii�defgdo�\i\mj̀_gem�defgdo�\jml�o�agc�p\jk\\g�]\ddaf\d�_g�jn\�defgd��m_]]\̀meaiodaq\jbo�̂_iejemaio�\jml�l��\ad_gapi\�cedjegmje_gd�m_gm\̀gegf���st}w�y�agc�}�v{z�_q�defgd�̀\]aeg\̂̀]eddepi\l[n\��{{��c\mede_go�jn_hfno�mi\àib�eg~aiecaj\c�d_]\�cedjegmje_gd�pad\c�_g�jn\�]\ddaf\�m_gj\gj�_q�defgdoagc�ej�keii�̀\�hè\�ac�hdj]\gjd�j_�]agb�i_mai�_̀cegagm\d�agc�d_]\�djaj\�djajhj\dl�[n\�c\mede_go�kejn�ejdq_h̀�d\̂àaj\�m_gmh̀̀egf�_̂ege_gdo�aid_�i\qj�_̂\g�d\~\̀ai�i\fai��h\dje_gdl[ned�pi_f�m_gdec\̀d�jn\�c\mede_g�_q��{{��|�����y�����w��{�}o������l�l������� ��o�agc�ejd�e]̂ amj�_g�i_maidefg�_̀cegagm\dl¡S¢RH£R�S¤�¥THH�¦§HḦG�¡VFHDV©�g�jneg�egf�ap_hj�jn\��{{��c\mede_g�ej�ed�n\îqhi�j_�̀\maii�a�q\k��\b�̂_egjd�ap_hj�r_gdjejhje_gai^̀_j\mje_gd�_q�q̀\\�d̂\\mn�agc�i_mai�f_~\̀g]\gj�defg�̀\fhiaje_gl�[ned�à\a�_q�jn\�iak�ed�m_]̂ i\ª�qàp\b_gc�jn\�dm_̂\�agc�d̂am\�_q�jned�pi_f�phj�d_]\�m_gj\ªj�ed�n\îqhi�eg�hgc\̀djagcegf�jn\�e]̂ amj�_qjn\�g\k�c\mede_gl«¬®̄®°±̄²®³́µ�¶·̧�¹̄ ²̧µ́®·¬º»��_]\�defg�̀\fhiaje_gd�m_gm\̀g�jn\�q_̀]�agc�gajh̀\�_q�jn\�defgo�g_jjn\�m_gj\gj�_q�jn\�]\ddaf\l�[n\d\�̀\fhiaje_gd�maii\c��{tz�yt��{�}wu{¼�v�ts{¼����utyy{���{z}�ws}w�yz�egmihc\�̀\fhiaje_g�_q�defg�de½\o�gh]p\̀o�]aj\̀eaido�iefnjegfo�]_~egf�̂àjdo�agc�̂_̀japeiejbo�a]_gf�_jn\̀

¾¿¿ÀÁÂÃÃÄÅÆÇÆÁÈÁÇÉÈÊÆÄÈËÌÊÃÍÎÏÐÃÎÑÃÁÒÉÆÓÔÒ¿ÒÉÅ¿ÒÇÆÓÅÓÕÖÒË×ÓÅÆÅÔØÁÒÁÓÇ×ÓÖËËÌÓÙÓ¿ÇÚÆÓÇ×ÓÉÒÔÕËÖ¿Ã

ÛÇÀØÖÒÉ¾¿�Ü�ÍÎÎÝ�¿Ç�ÞÖËÁËÆ¿�ßÄ¾ÇÇÔ�Ç×�àÇÙËÖÆáËÆ¿�Å¿�¿¾Ë�âÆÒÙËÖÁÒ¿Ø�Ç×�ãÇÖ¿¾�ÛÅÖÇÔÒÆÅÈäåæç�èéêçæëé�ìçéç�íîîïæéç�ðñò�çæóæôðõ�ëéíåñîôîöæéç�ëî�ìñòéõçëðñò�÷æçæëîõ�éøùéõæéñíéç����ìçæñö�ëåæç�èéêçæëé���îì�íîñçéñë�ëî������åðùéô�	æôô
ç�íîîïæé�ìçðöé�æñ�ðííîõòðñíé�èæëå�ëåéæõ�õæ÷ðí���îëæíé�
19



������������	�
� ��������������������������������������� �!�����"�#����$�%�����&�%������'%���(���"�����)������!

*��+����(����������,�(���,��-�.�-/����$�������$�$#���$�������$��$����$�$��!�$��$��#���� 	��

0123456�71858�984:;<02=35�<98�<;;=>8?@�A9=B2?8?�018C�<98�DEFG�H:502I28?�>201=:0�98I8983J8�0=�018�J=30830=I�018�984:;<08?�5A88J1@�EKG�01<0�018C�<98�3<99=>;C�0<2;=98?�0=�589B8�<�52432I2J<30�4=B893L830<;�23089850@<3?�EMG�01<0�018C�;8<B8�=A83�<LA;8�<;0893<02B8�J1<338;5�I=9�J=LL:32J<02=3�=I�018�23I=9L<02=3N�OPQRS�TUVWXY�Z[Q\]̂_�VQX\̂̀ @�abF�c6d6�efF@�ebF@�Fgb�d6�h06�Keai@�KejM@�Fgj�k6�l?6�K?�iiF�OFbfbmm6�nB89�018C8<95�018�J=:905�1<B8�<;;=>8?�<�B<9280C�=I�J=30830o38:09<;�5243�984:;<02=356pqrstrsuvwxty�z{|r�}t|~�ws{qrx��d=L8�5243�984:;<02=35@�1=>8B89@�985092J0�018�J=30830�=I�018�L855<486718�d:A98L8�h=:90�98�:2985�01<0�J=30830o�<58?�984:;<02=3�=I�3=3J=LL89J2<;�52435�L:50�L880�5092J05J9:023C6��5�A19<58?�23�018�V��S�L<H=920C�=A232=3@�<�984:;<02=3�25�J=30830o�<58?�2I�018�9:;8�D<AA;285�0=�<A<902J:;<9�E5243G��8J<:58�=I�018�0=A2J5�?25J:558?�=9�018�2?8<�=9�L855<48�8�A98558?N�O5;2A�=A6@�<0�im6�7185092J0�5J9:023C�50<3?<9?�?8L<3?5�01<0�018�;=J<;�4=B893L830�L:50�51=>�01<0�018�984:;<02=3�25�O2m�?852438?0=�589B8�<�XẀ����\][�4=B893L830<;�23089850�<3?�O22m�]QRRW����_Q\�WR�S�0=�<J128B8�01<0�230898506�71<0�25�<5088A�12;;�0=�J;2L�@�<3?�23�A9<J02J8�I8>@�2I�<3C@�984:;<02=35�5:9B2B8�5092J0�5J9:023C�98B28>6�0�25�>=901�3=0234�01<0�J=LL89J2<;�5A88J1�25�5:�H8J0�0=�C80�<3=0189�0850�<�B8952=3�=I�23089L8?2<085J9:023C�=:0;238?�23���]_RQ����ŜW]��Q̂������X_R\X��WR�U�TU�����\X���RT\X���Ẁ \̀̂̂\W]�W�������WRY@aae�c6d6�jje�OFbfem6�71<0�0850�25�?85J92�8?�23��<B2?�n>835���;=4�=3�nII8352B8�d2435@�<3?�<5�?25J:558?�8;=>@�018�2LA<J0�=I�018�V��S�?8J252=3�=3�018���]_RQ����ŜW]�0850�25�:3J;8<96�������  �¡¢718�7=>3�=I�£2;�890@��92¤=3<@�1<?�<�5243�J=?8�98�:29234�A89L205�I=9�52435@��:0�=:0;23234�<�B<9280C�=I8�8LA02=356�718�V��S�?8J252=3�I=J:58?�=3�018�8�8LA02=35�I=9�01988�0CA85�=I�52435¥�¦=;202J<;�d2435@78LA=9<9C��298J02=3<;�d2435@�<3?��?8=;=42J<;�d24356�c3?89�018�;=J<;�J=?8@�¦=;202J<;�d2435�>898�52435?852438?�0=�23I;:83J8�018�=:0J=L8�=I�<3�8;8J02=3§�018C�J=:;?��8�:A�0=�MK�5�:<98�I880�<3?�?25A;<C8??:9234�A=;202J<;�58<5=36�78LA=9<9C��298J02=3<;�d2435�>898�?8I238?�0=�23J;:?8�52435�01<0�?298J0�018�A:�;2J0=�<�J1:9J1�=9�=0189��:<;2IC234�8B830§�018C�J=:;?��8�:A�0=�52��5�:<98�I880�<3?�J=:;?��8�?25A;<C8?�FK1=:95��8I=98�<3?�F�1=:9�<I089�018��:<;2IC234�8B8306��?8=;=42J<;�52435�>898�?8I238?�0=��8�52435�01<0J=LL:32J<08�<�3=3J=LL89J2<;�L855<48�01<0�?2?3�0�I20�230=�5=L8�=0189�J<084=9C§�018C�J=:;?��8�:A�0=�Kg5�:<98�I8806��;=J<;�J1:9J1�<I089��8234�J208?�I=9�B2=;<02=3�=I�018�9:;85�I=9�78LA=9<9C��298J02=3<;�d2435�J1<;;8348?�018�5243�J=?8�<5�<�92?4234�01829�I988?=L�=I�5A88J16�718�7=>3�<94:8?�O<3?�018�;=>89�J=:905I=:3?m�01<0�205�984:;<02=35�>898�J=30830o38:09<;6�718�?25023J02=35�<L=34�0CA85�=I�52435@�018C�5<2?@�>898

©̈©ª«¬®̄°±°«²«±³²́°®²µ¶́·̧¹º̧»«¼³°½¾¼©¼³̄©¼±°½̄½¿À¼µÁ½̄ °̄¾Â«¼«½±Á½Àµµ¶½Ã½©±Ä°½±Á½³¼¾¿µÀ©

Å±ªÂÀ¼³̈ ©�Æ�·̧ Ç̧�©±�ÈÀµ«µ°©�É®̈±±¾�±Á�Ê±ÃµÀ°Ëµ°©�̄©�©̈µ�Ì°¼ÃµÀ«¼©Â�±Á�Í±À©̈�Å̄À±¾¼°̄²ÎÏÐÑ�ÒÓÔÑÐÕÓ�ÖÑÓÑ�×ØØÙÐÓÑ�ÚÛÜ�ÑÐÝÐÞÚß�ÕÓ×ÏÛØÞØàÐÓÑ�ÕØ�ÖÛÜÓßÑÕÚÛÜ�áÐÑÐÕØß�ÓâãÓßÐÓÛ×ÓÑä�åæÖÑÐÛà�ÕÏÐÑ�ÒÓÔÑÐÕÓç�æØÖ�×ØÛÑÓÛÕ�ÕØ�èéêëêÏÚãÓÞ�ìÐÞÞíÑ�×ØØÙÐÓ�ÖÑÚàÓ�ÐÛ�Ú××ØßÜÚÛ×Ó�ÒÐÕÏ�ÕÏÓÐßîßÐáÚ×æ�éØÕÐ×Óä
20



������������	�
� ��������������������������������������� �!�����"�#����$�%�����&�%������'%���(���"�����)������!

*��+����(����������,�(���,��-�.�-/����$�������$�$#���$�������$��$����$�$��!�$��$��#���� ���

01234�56�507389:;3�<1895=2�659�9>3�3?@=322:;3�8569369�5<�9>3�2:A6B�C>3�4:29:689:562�4:4�659�<1;5=�65=83625=�1�@1=9:8DE1=�;:3F@5:69�5=�@>:E525@>GB�H64I�9>3�7D29:<:819:56�<5=�9>3�=3ADE19:56�F12�D6=3E1934�959>3�8569369�5<�9>3�2:A6BJD29:83�C>5K12I�F=:9:6A�<5=�9>3�L5D=9I�4:21A=334B�M3�<5D64�9>19�9>3�4:29:689:562�F3=3�@E1:6EG�8569369N01234�164�9>D2�2D07389�95�29=:89�28=D9:6GB�C>3�4:29:689:562O039F336�P5E:9:81E�Q:A62I�C3K@5=1=GR:=389:561E�Q:A62I�164�S435E5A:81E�Q:A62OT43@3643U34V�369:=3EG�56�9>3�85KKD6:819:;3�8569369�5<�9>32:A6W�X2E:@�5@BI�19�YZB�T[3ADE19:56�91=A3934�19�2@38:<:8�2D07389�K1993=�:2�8569369�01234�3;36�:<�:9�4532�6594:28=:K:6193�1K56A�;:3F@5:692�F:9>�9>19�2D07389�K1993=W�X\]ZB�H64I�T16�:6658D5D2�7D29:<:819:56�8166599=162<5=K�1�<18:1EEG�8569369N01234�E1F�:695�563�9>19�:2�8569369�63D9=1EW�X̂ZBS6�:92�<1:E34�1993K@9�95�K339�9>3�29=:89�28=D9:6G�291641=4I�9>3�C5F6�5<<3=34�9F5�A5;3=6K3691E�:693=3292�952D@@5=9�:92�4:29:689:562_�1329>39:8�1@@31E�164�9=1<<:8�21<39GB�̀;36�:<�9>323�F3=3�8562:43=34�85K@3EE:6AA5;3=6K3691E�:693=3292�XF>:8>�9>3�L5D=9�122DK34�F:9>5D9�=DE:6AZI�9>3�C5F6a2�4:29:689:562�F3=3�65961==5FEG�91:E5=34B�JD29:83�b1A16�65934�:6�>3=�5F6�5@:6:56�X8568D==:6A�:6�9>3�7D4AK369�56EGZ�9>19�9>3C5F6a2�4:29:689:562�4:4�T659�@122�29=:89�28=D9:6GI�5=�:693=K34:193�28=D9:6GI�5=�3;36�9>3�E1DA>�9329W�X2E:@5@BI�19�cI�b1A16I�JBI�8568D==:6A�:6�7D4AK369ZBdefghi�jk�ljhgm�nopqrgrhstQ5�F>19�4532�9>:2�438:2:56�K316�<5=�E581E�5=4:616832u�S6�9>3�364I�25K3�4:29:689:562�1K56A�2:A628E31=EG�1=3�1EE5F34�164�F:EE�F:9>29164�7D4:8:1E�=3;:3FB�Q5K3�8543�@=5;:2:562I�9>5DA>I�KD29�03�=3;:234BH64�9>36I�9>3=3�1=3�9>3�5@36�vD329:562BC>3�L5D=9�F12�D616:K5D2�:6�7D4AK369_�C>3�@1=9:8DE1=�@=5;:2:562�5<�9>3�C5F6�5<�w:E03=9a2�2:A6�8543;:5E193�L5629:9D9:561E�@=59389:562�<5=�<=33�2@338>B�C>3�L5D=9�F12�<=189D=34I�9>5DA>I�:6�9>3�5@:6:562IK1x:6A�:9�>1=43=�95�4:283=6�9>3�<DEE�285@3�5<�9>3�438:2:56B�JD29:83�C>5K12�5<<3=34�9>3�K175=:9G�5@:6:565<�9>3�85D=9�F:9>�<:;3�7D29:832�75:6:6AB�JD29:83�HE:95�5<<3=34�1�8568D==:6A�5@:6:56�95�<D=9>3=�8E1=:<G�9>3

yzz{|}~~�����|�|����������~����~��~|������z���z�����������������|�|�����������z�������������z~

��{����yz��������z�����|��z���y����������������z��z�zy��������|�z��������zy����������� ¡¢�£¤¥¢¡¦¤�§¢¤¢�̈©©ª¡¤¢�«¬�¢¡®¡̄«°�¦¤̈ ¬©̄©±¡¤¢�¦©�§¬¤°¢¦«¬�²¡¢¡¦©°�¤³́¤°¡¤¬̈¤¢µ�¶·§¢¡¬±�¦ ¡¢�£¤¥¢¡¦¤̧�·©§�̈©¬¢¤¬¦�¦©�¹º»¼» «́ ¤̄�½¡̄̄¾¢�̈©©ª¡¤�§¢«±¤�¡¬�«̈ ©̈°«¬̈¤�£¡¦ �¦ ¤¡°¿°¡²«̈·�º©¦¡̈¤µ
21



������������	�
� ��������������������������������������� �!�����"�#����$�%�����&�%������'%���(���"�����)������!

*��+����(����������,�(���,��-�.�-/����$�������$�$#���$�������$��$����$�$��!�$��$��#���� .��

012345�67�89:504;�<=613:>�620?06?@�A;�B3:�C60?;D�EF�89:504;:�G;??;DF�3?D�H65613F6I@�<=I;;�C9:504;:46?49II;D�0?�C9DJ1;?5�6?KFL�3?D�5=;F�677;I;D�5B6�:;23I35;�620?06?:�56�695K0?;�5=;0I�K;J3K�I;3:6?0?J�3?D5=;0I�46?4;I?:�B05=�5=;�13C6I05F>:�I;3:6?0?J@H6�B;�=3M;�3�:2K05�469I5@�<=I;;�C60?;D�5=;�13C6I05F�6?KFN�5=I;;�C60?;D�5=;�13C6I05FL�E95�3K:6�C60?;D�3?;O2K3?356IF�46?49II;?4;N�3?D�5=I;;�D0:3JI;;D�B05=�5=;�13C6I05F>:�K;J3K�I;3:6?0?J@�<=0:�5=I;;P5=I;;P5=I;;:2K05L�9?76I59?35;KFL�439:;:�;M;?�16I;�=;3DP:4I354=0?J�76I�3?�3KI;3DF�4612K;O�56204@QRSTUSTVWXYUZ�[\YT\S]T\RSY@�̂?�5=0?_0?J�3E695�F69I�:0J?�6ID0?3?4;L�3:_�5=0:̀�a6;:�5=0:�I;J9K3506?�322KF56�3�23I5049K3I�:0J?�E;439:;�67�5=;�?6?P4611;I403K�46?5;?5�6?�5=;�:0J?b�̂7�F;:L�5=;�I;J9K3506?�19:5�1;;5:5I045�:4I950?F�9?D;I�cdde@�<=;�J6M;I?1;?5�19:5�:=6B�5=35�5=;�I;J9K3506?�0:�D;:0J?;D�56�:;IM;�3fghidjjklm�J6M;I?1;?53K�0?5;I;:5�3?D�lnoogpjq�rnkjgode�56�34=0;M;�5=35�0?5;I;:5@7̂�F69I�6ID0?3?4;�D0:50?J90:=;:�316?J�?6?4611;I403K�:0J?�5F2;:s26K05043K�M@�0D;6K6J043K�M@�I;K0J069:s5=6:;�D0:50?4506?:�3I;�9?46?:5059506?3K�3?D�19:5�E;�4=3?J;D@89:504;�<=613:�D0D�677;I�:61;�46?5;?5PE3:;D�I;J9K3506?:�5=35�13F�:9IM0M;�:5I045�:4I950?F�07�5=;F�3I;?3II6BKF�530K6I;D�56�3DDI;::�29EK04�:37;5F@�<=;:;�0?4K9D;�B3I?0?J�:0J?:�76I�=3t3ID:�6?�2I0M35;�2I62;I5FL:0J?:�D0I;450?J�5I37704L�6I�:5I;;5�?91E;I:�3::64035;D�B05=�2I0M35;�=69:;:@�QRSTUSTVuUvTwXx�[\YT\S]T\RSYy�<=;�:;M;I3K�620?06?:�67�5=;�469I5�695K0?;�:61;�M3K0D�D0:50?4506?:�76II;J9K3506?@�̂?�=0:�13C6I05F�620?06?L�89:504;�<=613:�?65;D�5=35�K643K�J6M;I?1;?5:�:50KK�=3M;�z312K;46?5;?5P?;95I3K�62506?:�3M30K3EK;�56�I;:6KM;�2I6EK;1:�B05=�:37;5F�3?D�3;:5=;504:{�|:K02�62@L�35�}~�@�<=;:;0?4K9D;�I;J9K3506?�67L�316?J�65=;I�5=0?J:L:0t;E90KD0?J�135;I03K:K0J=50?J16M0?J�23I5:26I53E0K05F

����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�������������������� �������¡���������¢�����£�����������¤�������������¥��������������¦§̈©�ª«¬©̈«�®©«©�̄°°±̈«©�²³́�©̈µ ¶̈²·�«̄§³°¶°̧ «̈©�°�®³́«·©²³́�¹̈©̈°·�«º»«·̈«³̄«©¼�½¾®©̈³̧ �§̈©�ª«¬©̈«¿�¾°®�̄°³©«³�°�ÀÁÂÃÂ§²»«¶�Ä̈¶¶Å©�̄°°±̈«�®©²̧«�̈³�²̄ °̄·́²³̄«�ª̈§�§«̈·Æ·̈¹²̄¾�Á°̈̄«¼
22



������������	�
� ��������������������������������������� �!�����"�#����$�%�����&�%������'%���(���"�����)������!

*��+����(����������,�(���,��-�.�-/����$�������$�$#���$�������$��$����$�$��!�$��$��#���� 0��

123425436�728�9:;<=>�932943?@�?A4�B2C8�DE@�F2�E�<28F�CE@�?2CE3G�48?=34<@�H23;=GG=8F�?A4�92I?=8F�2HI=F8I6�I2�<28F�EI�=?�G24I�I2�=8�E8�4548AE8G4G6�>28?48?J84:?3E<�DE8843K�LI<=9�29M6�E?�NOPM�Q�<2>E<23G=8E8>4�23�I?E?4�I?E?:?4�>E8�932A=;=?�E<<�I=F8I�=8�?A4�9:;<=>�3=FA?J2HJCE@M�R:?6�=H�I=F8I�E34�E<<2C4G6�?A434F:<E?=28I�D:I?�82?�G=I?=8F:=IA�;EI4G�28�?A4�>28?48?�2H�?A4�D4IIEF4M�S4F:<E?=28I�?AE?�E<<2C�I2D46�;:?82?�E<<6�828>2DD43>=E<�I=F8I�3:8�EH2:<�2H�?A4�TUUV�G4>=I=28MW23�4XED9<46�YZ[\�]�N̂OĴ_�E<<2CI�H23�792<=?=>E<�I=F8IK�LEI�8E332C<@�G4H=84GP�=8�?A4�9:;<=>�3=FA?J2HJCE@�2H�I?E?4�A=FACE@I�G:3=8F�4<4>?=28�I4EI28M�BAE?�I?E?:?4�E8G�I=D=<E3�23G=8E8>4I�C=<<�844G�?2�;4345=I4G�?2�4=?A436�932A=;=?�E<<�I=F8I�=8�?A4�3=FA?J2HJCE@6�23�E<<2C�>2D9<=E8?�I=F8I�C=?A�E8@828>2DD43>=E<�D4IIEF4�=8�?A4�3=FA?J2HJCE@�G:3=8F�4<4>?=28�I4EI28M:̀I?=>4�Q<=?26�=8�A=I�>28>:33=8F�29=8=286�9325=G4G�H:3?A43�4X9<E8E?=28�LE<?A2:FA�82?�E8�4XAE:I?=54�<=I?P2H�CAE?�G=I?=8>?=28I�DE@�;4�5E<=G6�>28?48?J84:?3E<�G=I?=8>?=28IM�a4�=8><:G4Gb\=c4�L=8><:G=8F�G=HH4348?�I=c4I�H23�G=HH4348?�?@94I�2H�I=F8IPd2>E?=286�=8><:G=8F�G=I?=8F:=IA=8F�;4?C448�H344I?E8G=8F�I=F8I�E8G�E??E>A4G�I=F8Ie=I?=8F:=IA=8F�;4?C448�<=FA?4G�E8G�:8<=FA?4Ge=I?=8F:=IA=8F�;4?C448�H=X4G�D4IIEF4�E8G�4<4>?328=>�I=F8Ie=I?=8F:=IA=8F�;4?C448�I=F8I�28�9:;<=>�932943?@�E8G�I=F8I�28�93=5E?4�932943?@e=I?=8F:=IA=8F�;4?C448�I=F8I�28�>2DD43>=E<�932943?@�E8G�I=F8I�28�34I=G48?=E<932943?@S4I?3=>?=8F�?A4�?2?E<�8:D;43�2H�I=F8I�E<<2C4G�943�D=<4�2H�32EGCE@e=I?=8F:=IA=8F�;4?C448�28J934D=I4I�E8G�2HHJ934D=I4I�I=F8IfQ8G�?=D4�34I?3=>?=28I�28�I=F8I�EG543?=I=8F�E�284J?=D4�4548?ff�BA4I4�<EI?�4XED9<4IgG=I?=8F:=IA=8F�;4?C448�28J934D=I4Ih2HHJ934D=I4I�E8G�34I?3=>?=8F�I=F8I�H23�284J?=D4�4548?IgI44D�?2�>28H<=>?�C=?A�?A4�DEi23=?@�29=8=28�=8�TUUVM�a4346�C4�F4?�;E>j�?2�?A4�=II:4�2H�?A4H3E>?:34G�>2:3?�E8G�D:<?=9<4�29=8=28I�LG=I>:II4G�;4<2CPMklmn�opmqrstnquvwxywxz{|}�~y����x{vw|:̀I?=>4�Q<=?2�I�>28>:3348>4�LG=I>:II4G�E;254P�<=I?4G�DE8@�34F:<E?23@�G=I?=8>?=28I�?AE?�E34�><4E3<@E:?A23=c4GM�a4�<=I?4G�?C2�G=I?=8>?=28I�?AE?�G2�82?�><4E3<@�I�:E34�C=?A�?A4�34EI28=8F�2H�?A4�DEi23=?@29=8=28M�R:?6�=H�@2:�>28I=G43�?A4�?A344�i:I?=>4I�>28>:33=8F�C=?A�Q<=?2�9<:I�?A4�?A344�i:I?=>4I�>28>:33=8F

���������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���¡�������������

¢���������£����¤����¥�������¦���������§� ���̈ �����������©�� ����������ª�����¢��������«¬®�̄°±®²°�³®°®�́µµ¶°®�·̧¹�®º»·¼�²°́¬̧ µ»µ½°®�²µ�³̧ ¹°¼®²·̧¹�¾®²µ¼�°¿À°¼°̧ °́®Á�ÂÃ³®̧½�²¬®�̄°±®²°Ä�Ãµ³�́µ̧®°̧²�²µ�ÅÆÇÈÇ¬·À°»�É»»Ê®�́µµ¶°�³®·½°�̧�·́ µ́¼¹·̧ °́�̄²¬�²¬°¼Ë¼¾·́Ã�Æµ²́°Á
23



������������	�
� ��������������������������������������� �!�����"�#����$�%�����&�%������'%���(���"�����)������!

*��+����(����������,�(���,��-�.�-/����$�������$�$#���$�������$��$����$�$��!�$��$��#���� /��

01�23456718�91:;<�8=7>7�?>7�@0A�23@80B7@�8=?8�899C�8=7�D37@8091�9E�B918718�1738>?:08;�F08=�69>7�G>?B80B?:B91@047>?8091�8=?1�H3@80B7�I=96?@J�=?>4�:017K�I=3@<�L:089J@�9G01091�6?;�01�E?B8�=9:4�8=7�5>7?87@8�F705=89E�8=0@�B?@7K�M1:;�8067�F0::�87::N8067�?14�69>7�:0805?8091KO0>@8<�H3@80B7�L:089�:0@874�@051@�E9>�917P8067�7Q718@K�I=0@�@776@�89�R7�G>7B0@7:;�F=?8�8=7�6?29>08;�@83BC49F1�01�8=0@�B?@7K�S8�0@�31B:7?>�=9F�?�:9B?:�>753:?8091�B93:4�@8>3B83>7�@3B=�>753:?8091�F08=938�>7:;015�918=7�B918718�9E�8=7�67@@?57�08@7:EK�T38�8=7�01B:3@091�91�H3@80B7�L:089J@�:0@8�G9018@�89�@967�>996�E9>47E01015�@051@�R?@74�91�E31B8091KL14�@7B914<�H3@80B7�L:089�:0@874�8=7�40@801B8091�R78F771�91PG>760@7@�?14�9EEPG>760@7@�@051@K�I=771E9>B76718�9EE0B7>�63@8�>7?4�8=7�@051�01�9>47>�89�4787>6017�0E�?�@051�0@�9EEPG>760@7@�9>�91PG>760@7@K�L@@3B=<�8=7@7�F93:4�@776�89�R7�E?B0?::;�B918718PR?@74�?14�@3R27B8�89�@8>0B8�@B>3801;K�T38<�G>09>�U3G>767V93>8�B?@7:?F�=?@�3G=7:4�8=7�91PG>760@7W9EEPG>760@7�40@801B8091�?14�8=?8�G>7B74718�0@�198�9Q7>>3:74�R;8=7�6?29>08;�9G01091KXYZZ[\]̂_̀�_ab�cYa]YZZ[\]̂_̀�de[[]fg�S1�G?@8�47B0@091@�8=7�U3G>767�V93>8�=?@�8>7?874�B9667>B0?:@G77B=�89�@:05=8:;�:7@@�G>987B8091�8=?1�191B9667>B0?:�@G77B=K�V9667>B0?:�@G77B=�>753:?8091�1774@�896778�?�Q7>@091�9E�0187>6740?87�@B>3801;<�198�8=7�@8>0B8�@B>3801;�?GG:074�89�>753:?8091�9E�191PB9667>B0?:@G77B=�hijjk�ljmjnoppqk�rjmsnop�tuvwxm�yow�z�{pj|sn}|�rxn~������u�p}|�ijn�}|j�rx��}ww}xm�x���j��xn�<������KUK�����h������KL>53?R:;<�8=7��jjv�47B0@091�9G7174�8=7�499>�89�B=?::7157�?�@051�9>401?1B7�8=?8�40@801530@=7@�R78F771B9667>B0?:�?14�191B9667>B0?:�@G77B=K�H3@80B7�L:089J@�B91B3>>015�9G01091�19874�8=?8�40@801530@=015R?@74�91�8=7�sq~j�x��~nx~jnsqNB9667>B0?:�9>�>7@047180?:NF93:4�R7�Q?:04K��753:?8015�R?@74�91�8=7|xmsjms�x��s�j�w}lmNB9667>B0?:�9>�191B9667>B0?:N?>53?R:;�0@�3147>60174�R;�8=7��jjv�47B0@091K�98?R:;<�8=935=<�8=7�6?29>08;�01��jjv�404�198�9Q7>>3:7�08@�G>09>�47B0@091@K�I=7��jjv�47B0@091�F?@E9B3@74�91�8=7�I9F1�B947J@�40@801B8091@�?6915�8;G7@�9E�191B9667>B0?:�@G77B=K��>7@36?R:;�8=7�:915P=7:4�@8?14?>4@�E9>�>753:?8091�9E�B9667>B0?:�@G77B=�@80::�?GG:;K����������S1�8=7�F?C7�9E��jjv<�@967�8=015@�?>7�B:7?>K��9Q7>16718@�@80::�=?Q7�?1�?>>?;�B918718P1738>?:�>753:?8091@89�?GG:;�89�@051@K�T38<�B918718PR?@74�40@801B8091@�@3B=�?@�8=7�917@�01�8=7�I9F1�9E��0:R7>8J@�B947�63@8@3>Q0Q7�@8>0B8�@B>3801;�89�@8?14K�T7B?3@7�9E�60A�9E�9G01091@�E>96�8=7�V93>8<�8=7>7�?>7�@7Q7>?:�9G71D37@8091@K��7�F0::�198�C19F�8=7�E3::�@B9G7�?14�67?1015�9E��jjv���� x�m�x��y}p�jns�3180:�8=7�E747>?:B93>8@�R7501�89�?GG:;�8=0@�47B0@091�89�98=7>�@051�:0805?8091K¡¢¢�£¤¥¦§̈�£©̈©£ª©«¬�¦¤̈�®¢̄¥�°̄ §̈�¤̈�°±®¢¤̈¦©«�²³«�°̄ §̈©«�̄³¢¤³©�®́�§¦©�µ¶¦̄ ¢̄�̄·�̧ ª̄©£³¹©³§�§̄�²««£©̈ �̈¤̈̈ ±©̈�̄·�¤³§©£©̈§�§̄¥̄ª©£³¹©³§�̄º¶¤²¢̈¬�¦¤̈�®¢̄¥�°̄ §̈�¤̈�·̄£�©«±¶²§¤̄³²¢�²³«�¤³·̄£¹²§¤̄³²¢�±̈©�²³«�¹²́�®©�±̈©«�·̄£�§¦̄ ©̈�°±£°̄ ©̈̈�»¤§¦̄ ±§�°©£¹¤̈̈ ¤̄³®́�°£̄ª¤«¤³¥�²¶¼³̄ »¢©«¥¹©³§�̄·�¤§̈�̈̄ ±£¶©¬�½̈©�̄·�§¦¤̈�®¢̄¥�°̄ §̈�·̄£�¶̄¹¹©£¶¤²¢�°±£°̄ ©̈̈�¤̈�°£̄¦¤®¤§©«¬�̄ �®£̄»̈ ©�²�¶̄¹°¢©§©�¶²§²¢̄¥

¦§§°̈¾¿¿¶²³̄ ³̈ ¬̈̄ ¥¬±³¶¬©«±¿ÀÁÂÃ¿ÁÄ¿̈¤¥³Å¢¤§¤¥²§¤̄³Å²Å®£¤©·Å²³²¢́ ¤̈̈Å̄ ·Å£©©«ÅªÅ§̄»³Å̄·Å¥¤¢®©£§¿

Ǣ °́£¤¥¦§�Ç�ÀÁÁÈ�§̄�É£©̈©³§�µ¶¦̄ ¢̄�̄·�̧ ª̄©£³¹©³§�²§�§¦©�½³¤ª©£̈¤§́�̄·�Ê̄ £§¦�Æ²£̄¢¤³²¬ËÌÍÎ�ÏÐÑÎÍÒÐ�ÓÎÐÎ�ÔÕÕÖÍÐÎ�×ØÙ�ÎÍÚÍÛ×Ü�ÒÐÔÌØÕÛÕÝÍÐÎ�ÒÕ�ÓØÙÐÜÎÒ×ØÙ�ÞÍÎÍÒÕÜ�ÐßàÐÜÍÐØÔÐÎá�âãÓÎÍØÝ�ÒÌÍÎ�ÏÐÑÎÍÒÐä�ãÕÓ�ÔÕØÎÐØÒ�ÒÕ�åæçèçÌ×àÐÛ�éÍÛÛêÎ�ÔÕÕÖÍÐ�ÓÎ×ÝÐ�ÍØ�×ÔÔÕÜÙ×ØÔÐ�ÏÍÒÌ�ÒÌÐÍÜëÜÍÞ×Ôã�æÕÒÍÔÐá
24



������������	�
� ��������������������������������������� �!�����"�#����$�%�����&�%������'%���(���"�����)������!

*��+����(����������,�(���,��-�.�-/����$�������$�$#���$�������$��$����$�$��!�$��$��#���� ���

01�234005�01�60789:;8:<�=>?5@3A<@0:BC�=58AB8�7@B@<�<48�234005DB�E8?B@<8�A<�EEEFB0GF>:3F8H>�09�30:<A3<�<48�I00JB<098C�234005�0160789:;8:<C�KIL�MMMN�O:A==P2A:H89B�I>@5H@:GC�QRK�K4A=85�S@55C�K4A=85�S@55C�RK�TUVWWPMMMNX�8P;A@5�BA58BYB0GF>:3F8H>X�<858=40:8WZWFW[[F\ZZWX�09�1A]�WZWFW[TFTUNUF4<<=B̂__3A:0:BFB0GF>:3F8H>_TNZV_NU_B@G:P5@<@GA<@0:PAP?9@81PA:A5̀B@BP01P988HP7P<0E:P01PG@5?89<_

K0=̀9@G4<�a�TNNW�<0�b98B8:<�234005�01�60789:;8:<�A<�<48�Q:@789B@<̀�01�R09<4�KA905@:AFcdef�ghifejh�kfhf�lmmnehf�opq�feresot�jhldpmsmuehf�jm�kpqhtfjopq�vefejmt�hwxhtehplhfy�z{kfepu�jdef�ghifejh|�{mk�lmpfhpj�jm�}~���doxhs��ess�f�lmmneh�kfouh�ep�ollmtqoplh�gejd�jdhet�tevol{�~mjelhy
25



������������	
��� ������������������������������������������������������ � ��!������"�!�����"�����#�"������$"�%�&�'�(�)��������%�*

��������&����� ��� !�& ��!��+���+,���������������������������������������!���������������!����!������&�!��� ��-

�./01234�.05/53�6.�7/809�:/;2<5=251�70>?@ABCDEFGH�IJKILKMMN@OEPQ�RSTFH�NGST�UPVFBSGWXYZ�Y�[\]Z�̂_̀\ZYZab�̀\[c\Z]d\[e�fbcgbbZ�̂Zhi_bj\[b[�YZ̀�̂kkhi_bj\[b[�[\]Z[l�meb�YZ[gb_�\[�nb[Yaâ_̀\Z]�ĉ�opqp�qdi_bjb�X̂d_cr[�̀ba\[\̂Z�\Z�stuv�wx�yz{ut|�}~������|���utw|���y�}��ut{t|��wx�yz{ut|���s������qp�Xcp������������p�me\[�f�̂]�̂dc�\Zb[�ceb�aY[b�YZ̀�[̂jb��b[[̂Z[�k̂_�ĵ �\Z]�k̂_gY_̀p�\�b�jYZn��̂aY��[\]Z�â b̀[��ceb�X\cn�̂k��d[c\Z��mb�Y[��[\]Z�â b̀�̀bk\Zb̀��̂kkhi_bj\[b�[\]Z��ĉ�jbYZ��Y[\]Z�Ỳ�b_c\[\Z]�Y�fd[\Zb[[��ib_[̂Z��Yac\�\cn��]̂^̀[��i_̂̀ dac[��̂_�[b_�\ab[�Ẑc��̂aYcb̀�̂Z�ceb�[\cb�geb_bceb�[\]Z�\[�\Z[cY��b̀��̂_�ceYc�̀\_bac[�ib_[̂Z[�ĉ�YZn��̂aYc\̂Z�Ẑc�̂Z�ceYc�[\cbp��meb�̂_̀\ZYZab�i_̂e\f\cb̀Zbg�̂kkhi_bj\[b[�[\]Z[�fdc�Y��̂gb̀�b�\[c\Z]�̂kkhi_bj\[b[�[\]Z[�ĉ�âZc\Zdb�Y[��Ygkd��ẐZâZk̂_j\c\b[pmeb�̂_̀\ZYZab�Y��̂gb̀�̂gZb_[�̂k�̂Zhi_bj\[b[�[\]Z[�ĉ�âZ�b_c�cê[b�[\]Z[�ĉ�̀\]\cY��[\]Z[�fdci_̂e\f\cb̀�̀\]\c\�Yc\̂Z�̂k�̂kkhi_bj\[b[�[\]Z[pq\]Z�âjiYZ\b[�aeY��bZ]b̀�ceb�̂Zhi_bj\[b[�̂kkhi_bj\[b[�̀\[c\Zac\̂Z�Y[�âZcbZchfY[b̀�YZ̀dZâZ[c\cdc\̂ZY��dZ̀b_�ceb�_df_\a�̂k������}~��t����u������op�qp�����������pq\]Z�_b]d�Yc\̂Z[�jYn�fb�̀b[\_Yf�b�k̂_�c_Ykk\a�[Ykbcn��âjjdZ\cn�Yb[cebc\a[��YZ̀�̂ceb_g\[b��fdc�[\]Z_b]d�Yc\̂Z[�fd_̀bZ�[ibbae�YZ̀�Y_b�[df�bac�ĉ�âZ[c\cdc\̂ZY��_b�\bg�ĉ�bZ[d_b�ceb�_b]d�Yc\̂Z[�̀̂ �Ẑc�\̂�Ycb�ceb� \_[c��jbZ̀jbZc�i_̂cbac\̂Z[�̂k�k_bb�[ibbaep�oZ̀b_�ceb� \_[c��jbZ̀jbZc�aY[b�Yg��âZcbZc

¡¢¢£¤¥¦¦§̈©ª©¤«¤ª¬«©§«®̄¦°±°°¦±²¦ª©³£́®µ¶¤®¤³̈ ©̄ ³ª·³£́®µ¶¤®¤³¤¶¬©¤³̈©³£̄ ¢̈®³̧ ª́µ³¢¡®³³¤³¤£́®µ®³§ª́¢¦

¹ª£º́¶¬¡¢�»�°±±²�¢ª�¼́®¤®©¢�½§¡ªª¾�ª̧�¿ªÀ®́©µ®©¢�̈¢�¢¡®�Á©¶À®́¤¶¢º�ª̧�Âª́¢¡�¹̈ ª́¾¶©̈«ÃÄÅÆ�ÇÈÉÆÅÊÈ�ËÆÈÆ�ÌÍÍÎÅÈÆ�ÏÐÑ�ÆÅÒÅÓÏÔ�ÊÈÌÄÐÍÓÍÕÅÈÆ�ÊÍ�ËÐÑÈÔÆÊÏÐÑ�ÖÅÆÅÊÍÔ�È×ØÈÔÅÈÐÌÈÆÙ�ÚÛËÆÅÐÕ�ÊÄÅÆ�ÇÈÉÆÅÊÈÜ�ÛÍË�ÌÍÐÆÈÐÊ�ÊÍ�ÝÞßàßÄÏØÈÓ�áÅÓÓâÆ�ÌÍÍÎÅÈ�ËÆÏÕÈ�ÅÐ�ÏÌÌÍÔÑÏÐÌÈ�ÇÅÊÄ�ÊÄÈÅÔãÔÅÖÏÌÛ�ÞÍÊÅÌÈÙ
26



������������	
��� ������������������������������������������������������ � ��!������"�!�����"�����#�"������$"�%�&�'�(�)��������%�*

��������&����� ��� !�& ��!��+���+,���������������������������������������!���������������!����!������&�!��� ��-

./01234�2/5043167.8�92/504316.5�1:/�86;/<�47=3167.<�:/65:1<�3.>�71:/2�=:323=1/26816=8�7?�865.8@�32/�80AB/=1�176.1/2C/>631/�8=2016.DE�F/5043167.8�7?�=7CC/2=634�8G//=:�32/�86C64324D�80AB/=1�17�6.1/2C/>631/�8=2016.DEH.1/2C/>631/�8=2016.D�>/C3.>8�1:31�1:/�2/5043167.�3>I3.=/�3�80A813.1634�57I/2.C/.134�6.1/2/81�3.>�A/.7�C72/�2/8126=16I/�1:3.�./=/8832D�17�?021:/2�1:31�6.1/2/81E�J7.1/.1KA38/>�2/5043167.8�92/504316.5�1:/C/8835/�7.�1:/�865.@�32/�80AB/=1�17�8126=1�8=2016.D<�1:/�:65:/81�4/I/4�7?�B0>6=634�2/I6/LE�M.>/2�8126=18=2016.D<�3�2/5043167.�68�G2/80C/>�17�I67431/�1:/�N6281�OC/.>C/.1�265:1�17�?2//�8G//=:�0.4/88�61�68.3227L4D�136472/>�17�8/2I/�3�=7CG/446.5�8131/�6.1/2/81EP:/�QRRS�TU�VWXY�WZ�[\]̂R_̀�>/=6867.<�L:6=:�L38�3�?/L�D/328�G2672�17�1:/�abc̀\Y�=38/<�:3>�865.6?6=3.16CG3=18�7.�1:/�204/8�?72�?2//�8G//=:�3.>�1:/�G23=16=34�3GG46=3167.�17�47=34�865.�72>6.3.=/8E�d2672�17�QRRSC3.D�72>6.3.=/8�12/31/>�>6??/2/.1�=31/5726/8�7?�865.8�>6??/2/.14DE�e7<�?72�/f3CG4/<�1:/�P7L.�7?�g64A/212/5043167.8�12/31/>�=3CG365.�865.8�>6??/2/.14D�1:3.�1/CG7232D�/I/.1�865.8E��QRRS�:/4>�1:31�80=:�3>6816.=167.�68�3�=7.1/.1KA38/>�2/5043167.�80AB/=1�17�8126=1�8=2016.DE�P:/�J7021�?70.>�1:31�1:/�17L.h8�=7>/L38�.71�.3227L4D�136472/>�3.>�8120=i�61�>7L.�38�0.=7.81610167.34EP:/�QRRS�>/=6867.�C3>/�87C/�1:6.58�I/2D�=4/32j�O�47=34�865.�=7>/�C3D�.71�56I/�G2/?/2/.=/�17�87C/.7.=7CC/2=634�C/8835/8�7I/2�71:/2�.7.=7CC/2=634�C/8835/8E�k01<�38�70146./>�6.�1:68�A475<�1:/�QRRS>/=6867.�4/?1�87C/�l0/8167.8�7G/.j�m3D�3�865.�=7>/�81644�>6816.5068:�A/1L//.�=7CC/2=634�3.>.7.=7CC/2=634�865.8<�72�68�1:31�3�=7.1/.1KA38/>�>6816.=167.�80AB/=1�17�8126=1�8=2016.Dn�o:31�3A701>6816.5068:6.5�A/1L//.�7.KG2/C68/8�3.>�7??KG2/C68/8�865.8n�H?�3�;7.6.5�7??6=/2�:38�17�2/3>�1:/�865.�173GG4D�1:/�204/<�>7/8�1:31�C/3.�1:/�204/�68�3017C316=344D�=7.1/.1KA38/>ne6.=/�1:/�QRRS�>/=6867.�1:78/�l0/8167.8�:3I/�A//.�L72i6.5�1:/62�L3D�1:2705:�1:/�=70218E�H.�abc̀\Y�TUQRpqpY�rp̀\WYp]<�1:/�?/>/234�N6?1:�J62=061�J7021�7?�OGG/348�204/>�1:31�O0816.h8�>6816.=167.�A/1L//.�7.KG2/C68/8�3.>�7??KG2/C68/8�865.8�L38�3�=7.1/.1KA38/>�2/5043167.�80AB/=1�17�8126=1�8=2016.D�0.>/2�QRRSEP:/�=61D�3GG/34/>�17�1:/�MEeE�e0G2/C/�J7021EP:/�e0G2/C/�J7021�>6816.5068:/>�1:/�2/5043167.8�6.�QRRS�?27C�1:/�2/5043167.8�6.�abc̀\YE�o2616.5�1:/C3B7261D�7G6.67.<�s0816=/�e717C3D72�/CG:386;/>�1:31�1:/�P7L.�7?�g64A/21�72>6.3.=/�31�6880/�6.�QRRS86.54/>�701�G3216=0432�17G6=8�?72�>6??/2/.1�12/31C/.1E�H>/74756=34�865.8�L/2/�12/31/>�C72/�?3I723A4D�1:3.G74616=34�865.8�L:6=:<�6.�102.<�L/2/�12/31/>�C72/�?3I723A4D�1:3.�>62/=167.34�865.8�?72�2/4656708�3.>=:32613A4/�/I/.18E�P:/�O0816.�72>6.3.=/<�6.�=7.12381<�>6816.5068:/>�A38/>�7.�47=3167.t3�=7.1/.1K./01234>6816.=167.E�O8�.71/>�6.�1:/�J7021h8�7G6.67.<�uP:/�C/8835/�7.�1:/�865.�C311/28�7.4D�17�1:/�/f1/.1�1:31�61

vwwxyz{{|}~�~y�y����~|����{����{��{�~�x����y�y�}~�����x����y�y�y��~y�}~��x�}w�������wv����y�y�x�����|���w{

��x����vw��������w�����y�~w��|v������������~��~w�}w�wv���~����y�w��������wv��}����~}�������������� ����¡¢¢£����¤¥¦���§�̈¤©���¡�¥¢̈¢ª�����¢� ¥¦�©��¤¥¦�«����¢©��¬�©��¥¡��®�̄° ��¥ª�������������±�°¢ �¡¢¥��¥���¢�²³́ µ́�¤�̈�¶�̈̈·��¡¢¢£��� �¤ª���¥�¤¡¡¢©¦¤¥¡�����������©©̧�«¤¡°�³¢��¡�®
27



������������	
��� ������������������������������������������������������ � ��!������"�!�����"�����#�"������$"�%�&�'�(�)��������%�*

��������&����� ��� !�& ��!��+���+,���������������������������������������!���������������!����!������&�!��� 
�-

./01234�567�4.8/94�27:;5.<7�:1=;5.1/>�?67�1/@A100@B273.474�C.45./=5.1/�.4�567270127�4.3.:;2�51�12C./;2DE=1/57/5�/7F52;:G�5.37H�B:;=7H�12�3;//72�27452.=5.1/4>I�J4�4F=6H�567�JF45./�12C./;/=7�K;4�/15�4FLM7=5�51452.=5�4=2F5./D�./�567�K;D�56;5�567�N.:L725�12C./;/=7�K;4>?67�O1F25�100727C�7P;3B:74�10�B723.44.L:7H�=1/57/5@/7F52;:�27452.=5.1/4�1/�4B77=6�56;5�27QF.27�41377<;:F;5.1/�10�567�4B77=6>�R2.12�SFB2737�O1F25�4B77=6�;/C�4.8/�=;474�6;<7�B723.557C�567�1/@A100@B273.474�C.45./=5.1/4�;/C�=13372=.;:A/1/=13372=.;:�C.45./=5.1/4H�./=:FC./8�TUVVWXY�ZU[\WW]\̂_̀][abacd�eWf�_f�gUXb̀H�hij�k>S>�lml�nojplqH�èc[]rX�gU\bWc�srb�t�uX̀vf�eW]wf�_f�xUyXav�T̀]_feWzz{c�WV�|f�}fH�hhp�k>�S>�~~p�nojlmqH��̀ []Wz̀\ar���cvf�_f�Trc��àdWH�h~i�k>S>�hjm�nojloqH�;/C�̀ zỳ]b�WV�ea[��eWUcvaX�WV��Wb�̂cd̀X̀b�_f��r�wr�̀]b�VW]��acv̀c[H�h���k>S>�plj�nojlhq>�?67�O1F25C.27=5:D�45;574�56;5���̀ \̀�C.C�/15�BF2B125�51�=;45�C1FL5�1/�56747�=;474>I��1271<72H��̀ \̀�C.C�/15��=;45C1FL5�1/�567��;5.1/94�6.4512D�10�278F:;5./8�100@B273.474�4.8/4>I�74B1/C./8�51�;28F37/54�LD�567�4.8/�=13B;/D�;/C�567�C.447/5./8�1B./.1/H�567�3;M12.5D�1B./.1/�8.<744137�=:;2.5D�;/C�=1/51F24�51�567�4=1B7�10�567��̀ \̀�C7=.4.1/>�?67�4.8/�=13B;/D�;4�7C�567�O1F25�51�27;C�̀ \̀�4F=6�56;5�.0�;/�12C./;/=7�C70./74�4B77=6�LD�.54�0F/=5.1/�12�BF2B147H�567�12C./;/=7�.4�;F513;5.=;::D=1/57/5@L;47C>�?67��̀ \̀�C7=.4.1/�./=:FC7C�:;/8F;87�56;5��E4G137�0;=.;:�C.45./=5.1/4�L;47C�1/�;3744;87�;27�1L<.1F4H�C70././8�278F:;57C�4B77=6�LD�B;25.=F:;2�4FLM7=5�3;5572H�;/C�156724�;27�3127�4FL5:7HC70././8�278F:;57C�4B77=6�LD�.54�0F/=5.1/�12�BF2B147>I�?67�4.8/�=13B;/D�;28F7C�56;5�56;5�:;/8F;87461F:C�7P57/C�51�56.4�=;47H�;F513;5.=;::D�4FLM7=5./8�567�JF45./�12C./;/=7�51�452.=5�4=2F5./D>�?67�3;M12.5D274B1/C4�56;5�4F=6�;�27;C./8�10�567�VUcv[aWc�W]�wU]wWb̀�:;/8F;87�45275=674��̀ \̀�511�0;2�;/C�K1F:C=1/52;<7/7�B2.12�B27=7C7/5>�J4�=:;2.0.7C�LD�567�3;M12.5D�./�̂Ub[acH�F/C72�567��̀ \̀�C7=.4.1/H��EJG278F:;5.1/�10�4B77=6�=;//15�74=;B7�=:;44.0.=;5.1/�;4�0;=.;::D�=1/57/5�L;47C�4.3B:D�LD�4K;BB./8�;/1L<.1F4�4FLM7=5@3;5572�C.45./=5.1/�012�;��0F/=5.1/�12�BF2B1479�B21PD�56;5�;=6.7<74�567�4;37�274F:5>�?6;5C174�/15�37;/�56;5�;/D�=:;44.0.=;5.1/�56;5�=1/4.C724�0F/=5.1/�12�BF2B147�.4�;:K;D4�=1/57/5�L;47C>I�<7/�561F86�.5�.4�/15�4FLM7=5�51�567�/7;2:D�.3B144.L:7�LF2C7/�10�452.=5�4=2F5./D�012�=1/57/5@L;47C27452.=5.1/4H�JF45./94�12C./;/=7�3F45�45.::�3775�./57237C.;57�4=2F5./D>���0�56727�.4�7<.C7/=7�56;5�;/.3B723.44.L:7�BF2B147�12�MF45.0.=;5.1/�F/C72B./4�;�0;=.;::D�=1/57/5@/7F52;:�27452.=5.1/H�012�./45;/=7H�56;527452.=5.1/�3;D�L7�=1/57/5�L;47C>��1271<72H�51�4F2<.<7�./57237C.;57�4=2F5./DH�;�27452.=5.1/�1/�4B77=6�127PB2744.1/�3F45�L7�/;221K:D�5;.:127C�51�472<7�;�4.8/.0.=;/5�81<72/37/5;:�./572745>I�n=.5;5.1/4�;/CQF15;5.1/4�13.557Cq>�?67�O1F25�273;/C7C�567�=;47�012�567�:1K72�=1F254�51�2741:<7�.0�567�12C./;/=7�375./57237C.;57�4=2F5./D>�6.:7�567�MF45.=74�<157C��@i�51�FB61:C�567�JF45./�4.8/�12C./;/=7H�56727�K727�C.0072./8�1B./.1/4>��F45.=7�27D72�M1./7C�567�3;M12.5D�LF5�100727C�;�=1/=F22./8�1B./.1/�51�6.86:.865�6.4�<.7K�56;5�567��̀ \̀�C7=.4.1/K;4�K21/8>��F45.=7�J:.51�=1/=F227C�./�567�MFC837/5�LF5�C.447/57C�./�B;25�;28F./8�567�O1F25�10�JBB7;:4

����������������� �¡���¢£¡�¤¥¤¤�¥¦���§�̈¢©ª�¢�§��£§�«§�̈¢©ª�¢�§�ª ��§��§¡�£��¢§¬̈�©§��¢§¡§�§�¡�̈¢©¢§��¡̈��

��®̈ª ���̄ �¤¥¥¦����°̈¢�¢���±����²��¬�³�́¢̈�©¢��������¢�µ�ª́¢̈�ª�®��¬�¶�̈����̈�²ª���·̧ ¹º�»¼½º¹¾¼�¿º¼º�ÀÁÁÂ¹¼º�ÃÄÅ�º¹Æ¹ÇÃÈ�¾¼À̧ÄÁÇÁÉ¹¼º�¾Á�¿ÄÅ¼Èº¾ÃÄÅ�Ê¹º¹¾ÁÈ�¼ËÌ¼È¹¼ÄÀ¼ºÍ�ÎÏ¿º¹ÄÉ�¾̧¹º�»¼½º¹¾¼Ð�ÏÁ¿�ÀÁÄº¼Ä¾�¾Á�ÑÒÓÔÓ̧ ÃÌ¼Ç�Õ¹ÇÇÖº�ÀÁÁÂ¹¼�¿ºÃÉ¼�¹Ä�ÃÀÀÁÈÅÃÄÀ¼�»¹¾̧�¾̧¼¹È×È¹ÊÃÀÏ�ÒÁ¾¹À¼Í
28



������������	
��� ������������������������������������������������������ � ��!������"�!�����"�����#�"������$"�%�&�'�(�)��������%�*

��������&����� ��� !�& ��!��+���+,���������������������������������������!���������������!����!������&�!��� ��-

./0123�45�/6617�482�695629�42:4�.59�482�;1/0<�48/4�482�:0=>�;532�?/:�@>;5>:404@405>/1�5>�04:�./;2A�B@:40;2C85</:D�?85�/@485923�482�</E59047�560>05>�0>�FGGHD�30::2>423�.95<�482�32;0:05>�0>�IJKLMNA�B@:40;2C85</:D�E50>23�O7�B@:40;2:�P59:@;8�/>3�Q/99244D�?5@13�8/R2�.5@>3�482�5>ST5..S692<0:2:�30:40>;405>@>;5>:404@405>/1�@>329�FGGHAU5�?8/4�352:�480:�<2/>�=50>=�.59?/93V�W292�/92�:5<2�X27�Y@2:405>:�/>3�/>:?29:AZ[\�[�]̂_\�̀abc�b̂]d̂\_ê]f�]̂_\]�g[]cb�a\�dfc�̀a\dc\d�ah�dfc�]̂_\i]�jc]][_ck�P2>29/117D�>5A�C80:�?/:</32�;12/9�0>�FGGH�/>3�0:�92/..09<23�0>�IJKLMNl�mnop4�0:�92=@1/405>:�48/4�30:;90<0>/42�O/:23�5>�q482�4560;30:;@::23�59�482�032/�59�<2::/=2�2r692::23s�48/4�/92�;5>42>4�O/:23At�u;040>=�FGGHD�vwx�yA�UAD�/4�zwz{U@;8�92=@1/405>:�/92�:@OE2;4�45�:490;4�:;9@40>7A�|�15;/1�:0=>�5930>/>;2�;/>>54�=0R2�692.292>;2�45�651040;/1:0=>:�5R29�54829�>5>;5<<29;0/1�:0=>:A�|�15;/1�}5>0>=�5930>/>;2�;/>>54�629<04�|<290;/>�.1/=:�O@469580O04�54829�>5>;5<<29;0/1�.1/=:A�U@;8�;5>42>4SO/:23�92:490;405>:�?5@13�>54�<224�482�80=8�:4/>3/935.�:490;4�:;9@40>7D�/>3�10X217�?5@13�O2�:49@;X�35?>�/:�@>;5>:404@405>/1AC5�O2�:@92D�15;/1�5930>/>;2:�</7�:4011�0<65:2�/>�/99/7�5.�;5>42>4SNGJL~���92=@1/405>:�5>�:0=>:�/>3�54829:622;8A��2/:5>/O12�10<04:�5>�482�:0}2D�>@<O29D�/>3�15;/405>�5.�:0=>:�/92�629<0::0O12A�U0<01/917D92/:5>/O12�10<04:�5>�482�:0}2D�>@<O29D�/>3�15;/405>�5.�.1/=:�/92�629<0::0O12A�C82:2�/92�;5>:404@405>/1D;5>42>4S>2@49/1�92=@1/405>:�5.�482�40<2D�</>>29D�/>3�61/;2�5.�482�:622;8D�>54�92=@1/405>:�5.�482�;5>42>45.�482�:622;8A�a��̂h�dfc�c\ha�̀cjc\d�ahĥ̀c��je]d��c[b�dfc�]̂_\�da�[�����dfc�̀abc��̂]�dfc�̀abc�[edaj[d̂̀[����̀a\dc\d�g[]cbk��5A�C82�IJKLMN�32;0:05>�/115?:�48/4�:5<2�5930>/>;2�30:40>;405>:�</7�>2;2::04/42�48/4�482�5..0;2992/3�482�:0=>A�U@;8�30:40>;405>:�/92�>54�/@45</40;/117�:@OE2;4�45�:490;4�:;9@40>7A�Q@4�O2�<0>3.@1A�C82�5@94�39/?:�/�;12/9�10>2�O24?22>�482�9@12:�/4�0::@2�0>�FGGH�/>3�482�9@12:�/4�0::@2�0>�IJKLMNlmy>10X2�482�92=@1/405>:�/4�0::@2�0>�FGGHD�482��047s:�5..S692<0:2:�30:40>;405>�92Y@092:�/>�2r/<0>/405>�5.:622;8�5>17�0>�:29R0;2�5.�39/?0>=�>2@49/1D�15;/405>SO/:23�10>2:A�o4�0:�/=>5:40;�/:�45�;5>42>4A�C8@:D�/O:2>4/�;5>42>4SO/:23�6@965:2�59�E@:40.0;/405>D�482��047s:�30:40>;405>�0:�;5>42>4�>2@49/1�/>3�352:�>54�?/99/>4482�/6610;/405>�5.�:490;4�:;9@40>7AtZ[\�dfc�]̂_\�̀abc�b̂]d̂\_ê]f�gcd�cc\�a\���cĵ]c]�[\b�ahh���cĵ]c]�]̂_\]k�P2>29/117D�72:A�C80:�0:�48282/94�5.�482�30:6@42�0>�482�IJKLMN�;/:2A�C82�U@692<2��5@94�/..09<:�48/4�|@:40>s:�30:40>;405>�O24?22>�5>S692<0:2:�/>3�5..S692<0:2:�:0=>:�0:�>54�/�;5>42>4SO/:23�92=@1/405>A��8012�482�92=@1/405>�0:�O/:23�45�/>

��������������������������������������� �¡¢���������£�� �¡¢�����¢��������������¤ �¡������������ �¡����� ��

¥��¦ ¢����§���������̈ ������©����ª��¤�«�¬� �¡������������¢¬� �¢�¦��¤�®� ���¥� �ª¢���°̄±²�³́ µ²±¶́�·²́²�̧¹¹º±́²�»¼½�²±¾±¿»À�¶́ °̧¼¹¿¹Á±́²�¶¹�·¼½́À²¶»¼½�Â±²±¶¹À�́ÃÄ́À±́¼̧ ²́Å�ÆÇ·²±¼Á�¶°±²�³́ µ²±¶́È�Ç¹·�̧¹¼²́¼¶�¶¹�ÉÊËÌË°»Ä́¿�Í±¿¿Î²�̧¹¹º±́�·²»Á́�±¼�»̧ ¹̧À½»¼̧ �́³±¶°�¶°́±ÀÏÀ±Â»̧Ç�Ê¹¶±̧́ Å
29



������������	
��� ������������������������������������������������������ � ��!������"�!�����"�����#�"������$"�%�&�'�(�)��������%�*

��������&����� ��� !�& ��!��+���+,���������������������������������������!���������������!����!������&�!��� 	�-

./0.10�21�03.�4.5567.�28�03.�5971:�;<0=3.�4.5567.�21�03.�5971�4600.>5�21?@�02�03.�./0.10�0360�90�9182>4503.�5971A5�>.?609B.�?2C60921DE�F3.�>.7G?60921�95�C210.10H1.G0>6?I6�C24421�094.:�J?6C.:�2>�4611.>>.7G?60921I5GKL.C0�02�910.>4.M960.�5C>G091@DNOP�QRS�TUVP�WXYS�YUTQUPVZUTR�WX[[S\WUO]�[STTOVST�̂\X[�PXPWX[[S\WUO]�[STTOVST_�̀.1.>6??@:�@.5DF3.�abcdef�C65.�M9M�120�M9>.C0?@�J>.5.10�03.�gG.50921�28�C244.>C96?h121C244.>C96?�M95091C09215:�KG0�03.M95CG55921�28�03.�C65.�C?6>989.5�03.�ijjk�M.C95921�91�6�l6@�0360�?94905�03.�94J6C0�21�J>92>�J>.C.M.10Dijjk�M9M�120�./J?9C90?@�2B.>>G?.�J>92>�J>.C.M.10:�KG0�03.�K>.6M03�28�03.�?617G67.�91�03.�2J91921�?.80�2J.16>7G4.105�0360�6�C244.>C96?h121C244.>C96?�M95091C0921�49730�K.�0>.60.M�65�C210.10HK65.M�61M�5GKL.C002�50>9C0�5C>G091@D�m1�abcdef:�03.�46L2>90@�2J91921�C90.5�J>.C.M.10�6889>4917�03.C244.>C96?h121C244.>C96?�M95091C0921�nojfdpqr�sbkctf�61M�ujdptvjkeqw�61M�C?.6>?@�5060.5�0360�;ijjkM9M�120�JG>J2>0�02�C650�M2GK0�21�03.5.�C65.5DE�x39?.�03.�C244.>C96?h121C244.>C96?�M95091C0921�49730120�K.�5GKL.C0�02�50>9C0�5C>G091@:�90�95�509??�6�>.7G?60921�28�5J..C3�61M�4G50�4..0�910.>4.M960.�5C>G091@Dx39?.�l.�6>.�06?y917�6K2G0�59715:�?.0�4.�.4J3659z.�61203.>�94J2>0610�?.5521�8>24�6�5060.�C2G>0�C65.{|2C6?�72B.>14.105�4G50�C?.61�GJ�C210>6M9C02>@�2>M9161C.�5.C09215�61M�06y.�C6>.�l903�0.>4912?27@�915971�>.7G?609215�61M�6??�?61M�G5.�>.7G?609215Dm1�}ece~rj��pt�c�����o����d�j�}errq�j��t��orjvvtfc:�C65.�12D������H����n�D�D��JJD��G7G50��:�����w:03.��2>03��6>2?916��2G>0�28��JJ.6?5�>.52?B.M�6�M95JG0.�K.0l..1�6�5971�C24J61@�61M�6�?2C6?72B.>14.10D�F3.�5971�C24J61@�J>2J25.M�6�M97906?�K9??K26>MD�F3.�?2C6?�5971�2>M9161C.�36M�82G>�M988.>.105.C09215�l903�5..4917?@�C210>6M9C02>@�J>2B959215�6K2G0�l3.03.>�6�K9??K26>M�l65�6??2l.M�21�03.J>2J.>0@D�̀9B.1�03.�64K97G90@:�03.�C2G>0�910.>J>.0.M�03.�2>M9161C.�91�86B2>�28�03.�8>..�G5.�28�?61M�61MJ.>4900.M�03.�K9??K26>MD�2>.2B.>:�03.�C2G>0�>.L.C0.M�0360�02l1A5�6>7G4.10�0360�6�K9??K26>M�l903�M97906?�C3617.6K?.�C2J@�l65�6;42B917�61M�8?653917�5971E�2>�61�;.?.C0>219C�4.5567.�K26>MDE��.903.>�28�0325.�0.>45�l.>.�M.891.M�61M03.�C2G>0�6JJ?9.M�M9C09216>@�M.891909215�02�M.0.>491.�0360�03.�J>2J25.M�K9??K26>M�l65�J.>4900.M�K.C6G5.90�l65�120�42B917�2>�8?653917�61M�l65�120�6�4.5567.�K26>MD�>M9161C.�M>680.>5I28�5971�2>M9161C.5�61M�6??�2>M9161C.5I4G50�06y.�C6>.�02�6B29M�C210>6M9C02>@J>2B959215�61M�G5.�C?.6>:�M.891.M�0.>4912?27@D��5�120.M�91�}ece~rj��pt�jpdejc:�;z21917�>.7G?609215�6>.120�910.1M.M�02�K.�6�5@50.4�28�4G>y@:�64K97G2G5�>G?.5�l3.>.�03.�J.>4900.M�G5.5�28�J>2J.>0@�G?09460.?@M.J.1M�21�03.�910.>J>.09B.�M95C>.0921�28�72B.>14.10�KG>.6GC>6C@DE

����������������������� ¡��¢£¢¢�£¤���¥�¦ § �̈ �¥��¡¥�©¥�¦ § �̈ �¥�̈���¥��¥��¡�� ¥ª¦�§¥�� ¥�¥�¥���¦ § ¥���¦��

«��¬¦̈�����¢££¤����®¦ � ���̄����°��ª�±�² ¦�§ �������� �³�̈² ¦�̈�¬��ª�́�¦���«�¦�°̈���µ¶·̧�¹º»̧·¼º�½̧º̧�¾¿¿À·º̧�ÁÂÃ�̧·Ä·ÅÁÆ�¼º¾¶Â¿Å¿Ç·º̧�¼¿�½ÂÃºÆ̧¼ÁÂÃ�È·̧·¼¿Æ�ºÉÊºÆ·ºÂ¾º̧Ë�ÌÍ½̧·ÂÇ�¼¶·̧�¹º»̧·¼ºÎ�Í¿½�¾¿Â̧ºÂ¼�¼¿�ÏÐÑÒÑ¶ÁÊºÅ�Ó·ÅÅÔ̧�¾¿¿À·º�½̧ÁÇº�·Â�Á¾¾¿ÆÃÁÂ¾º�¹·¼¶�¼¶º·ÆÕÆ·ÈÁ¾Í�Ð¿¼·¾ºË
30



������������	
��� ������������������������������������������������������ � ��!������"�!�����"�����#�"������$"�%�&�'�(�)��������%�*

��������&����� ��� !�& ��!��+���+,���������������������������������������!���������������!����!������&�!��� -�-

.//�012345�065607689�:315�;/<2�=<54�15�=>;/15368�?@8�=<5468�<@/1@6�;A�436�BC3<</�<D�E<760@F6@4�4<�?880655�155>65�<D�1@460654�4<2<760@F6@4�<GC1?/59�:315�;/<2�=<54�15�D<0�68>C?41<@?/�?@8�1@D<0F?41<@?/�>56�?@8�F?A�;6�>568�D<0�43<56�=>0=<565�H143<>4�=60F1551<@;A�=0<7181@2�?CI@<H/682F6@4�<D�145�5<>0C69�J56�<D�4315�;/<2�=<54�D<0�C<FF60C1?/�=>0=<565�15�=0<31;14689�:<�;0<H56�?�C<F=/646�C?4?/<2<D�BC3<</�<D�E<760@F6@4�=>;/1C?41<@5K�=/6?56�71514�436�BC3<</L5�H6;5146�?4�HHH95<29>@C968>�<0�C<@4?C4�436�M<<I54<06K�BC3<</�<DE<760@F6@4K�NMO�PPPQ�R@?==SB?@8605�M>1/81@2K�JTN�N3?=6/�U1//K�N3?=6/�U1//K�TN�VWXYYSPPPQZ�6SF?1/�5?/65[5<29>@C968>Z�46/6=3<@6Y\Y9Y]]9̂\\YZ�<0�D?_�Y\Y9Y]V9VWQW9344=5̀aaC?@<@595<29>@C968>aVQVVaQYa<@S=06F1565S?@8S<bS=06F1565S512@5S?@S>=8?46SD0<FS436S>S5S5>=06F6SC<>04a

N<=A01234�c�VQQY�4<�d0656@4�BC3<</�<D�E<760@F6@4�?4�436�J@1760514A�<D�T<043�N?0</1@?9efgh�ijkhglj�mhjh�noopgjh�qrs�hgtguqv�ljnfrouowgjh�lo�mrsjvhlqrs�xghglov�jyzjvgjrnjh{�|}mhgrw�lfgh�ijkhglj~�}om�norhjrl�lo������fqzju��guu�h�noopgj�mhqwj�gr�qnnovsqrnj�iglf�lfjgv�vgxqn}��olgnj{
31



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

PLANNING BOARD AGENDA ITEM 

Date of Meeting: Tuesday, April 2, 2024 

Subject: Short-Term Rentals 

Presenter:  Planning Director 

Attachments: Definitions Related to Short Term Rentals, Presentation Slide 
from June, 2023 

Description: 

During last month’s meeting the Board conducted a straw poll on the regulation of short- 
term rentals and requested additional guidance from Town Council on the issue. During 
their March 25 meeting, Town Council also indicated a willingness to pursue the regulation 
of short-term rentals and provided some preliminary thoughts on such regulation. Those 
thoughts included: 

• Buncombe County is also on a similar pace for considering the regulation of short-
term rentals. Jurisdictions should consider similar regulation for uniformity in the
region.

• Distinguishing between rental configurations such as homestays or whole home
rentals.

• Community solutions should be encouraged.
• Address property owners who live on the property vs. those who live elsewhere.
• Consider regulations where property owners are limited to one short-term rental

property.
• Consider regulating whole home rentals only.

Support for stringent regulation, such as amortization of existing short-term rentals, was 
not voiced.  

Action Requested: 

In order to progress the proposed regulation of short-term rentals, staff is proposing that 
specific definitions related to short-term rentals be considered. Through certain litigation it 
has been determined that in order to regulate short-term rentals, the use must be 
specifically defined and regulated outside the normally defined uses typically contained in 
land use regulations such as single-family dwelling, boarding house, bed-and-breakfast, 
hotel and others.  

32



Chapel Hill 
6.27.3 Definitions. For the purpose of this Section 6.27, the following are defined terms:  

Primary residence: A dwelling unit, a single-family dwelling unit with accessory apartment, 
or a dwelling unit with an attached duplex unit owned by the same property owner, in which the 
host resides a majority of the year (183 days per year or 50 percent or more of the time).  

Short-term rental (STR): the rental of a dwelling unit that is rented in whole or in part for 
fewer than thirty (30) consecutive days for a fee or other valuable consideration, or a lodging 
unit contained in a building that primarily contains dwelling units. A building that contains more 
lodging units than dwelling units, and at least three (3) lodging units, shall be considered a 
Tourist Home or Hotel or motel as defined in Appendix A.  

Short-term rental (STR), dedicated: A residential dwelling unit(s) located on a property not 
used as a primary residence in which the dwelling unit is rented in whole or in part for fewer 
than thirty (30) consecutive days for a fee or other valuable consideration, or a lodging unit 
contained in a building that primarily contains dwelling units.  

Short-term rental (STR), host: see definition for STR operator.  
Short-term rental (STR) hosting platform: A public platform that allows an operator to 

advertise a residential dwelling unit for use as a short-term rental and facilitates the booking 
transaction between the operator and the guest.  

STR Designated Local Responsible Party: The local contact responsible for responding to 
emergency complaints or issues stemming from the use of the dwelling unit as a short-term 
rental.  

Short-term rental (STR) operator: A property owner or authorized agent advertising, 
managing, and/or facilitating the use of the property as a primary residence STR or dedicated 
STR.  

Short-term rental (STR), primary residence: A primary residence rented in whole or in part 
for fewer than thirty (30) consecutive days for a fee or other valuable consideration.  

Short-term rental (STR) property owner: The owner of record of the short-term rental 
property as recorded in the Orange County Register of Deeds. The property owner maybe an 
individual or individuals or any form of business entity recognized by the State of North 
Carolina. If the property owner is a form of business entity, it shall maintain current registration 
with the North Carolina Secretary of State.  

Short-term rental (STR) permit: The zoning compliance permit issued by the town to 
property owners or designated agents to certify that a residential dwelling unit or accessory 
structure may be used as a primary residence STR or dedicated STR.  
Asheville 

Homestay means a lodging use that occurs within a private, resident occupied dwelling unit, and 
where up to two guest rooms are provided to transients for compensation for periods less than 30 
days and where the use is subordinate and incidental to the main residential use of the building. 
A homestay may or may not have a separate kitchen, bathroom and/or entrance. A homestay is 
considered a "lodging" use under this UDO.  

33



Short-term vacation rental means a dwelling unit with up to six guest rooms that is used and/or 
advertised through an online platform, or other media, for transient occupancy for a period of 
less than one month. A short- term vacation rental is considered a "Lodging" use under this 
UDO.  

Buncombe County (PROPOSED) 

Short-term rental means a detached single dwelling unit with a heated gross floor area not to 
exceed 4,000 square feet, which is rented for a period of at least two nights and for no greater 
than 30 days to tenants, including but not limited to tourists, visitors, vacationers, or similar 
transients. Short-term rentals which are adjacent to each other, either on the same lot or on 
separate lots, and under common ownership or management shall be considered a common 
development. A development consisting of more than ten (10) short-term rental units shall be 
considered a hotel or motel for the purposes of this ordinance.  

Woodfin 

Homestay means a lodging use that occurs within a resident-occupied single-family dwelling 
wherein space in the home is rented to transients for compensation for a period of less than one 
month, and where the use is incidental and subordinate to the primary residential use of the 
property. A homestay may or may not have a separate kitchen, bathroom and/or entrance. 

Short-term rental (STR) means a lodging use that occurs within a single dwelling unit 
containing a maximum of three bedrooms that is rented to transients for compensation for a 
period of less than one month. 

Brevard 

Short-term rental: A private residential property that is rented, either in whole, or part, for 
periods of less than 30 days for compensation. The following activities shall not be considered as 
a Short-Term Rental use for the purposes of this ordinance: 

A. Dwelling units rented, in whole or in part, where a permanent resident lives on-site on the 
property. This shall include attached or detached accessory dwelling units where 
the operator lives elsewhere on the property.  

B. Incidental residential vacation rentals, defined to mean no more than two such rentals in 
any calendar year where the total number of nights rented does not exceed 14. 

C. Rentals of property in any permitted hotel, motel, inn, rooming or boarding house, or bed 
and breakfast establishment. 

 

34

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/brevard-nc/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=884
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/brevard-nc/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=932
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/brevard-nc/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=600
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/brevard-nc/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=436


Next Steps
1. Consider forming a work group to understand the current STR

environment & impact in Weaverville objectively.

2. Consider conducting public engagement through community meetings, a

survey, or focus groups to gather feedback on STR impacts in the

community, both positive and negative.

3. Consider developing STR regulations, utilizing the questions asked in this

presentation, that are contextual to Weaverville.

4. Consider implementing and evaluating the impact of these regulations.

2035

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
https://www.cityofbrevard.com/498/Short-Term-Rental-Task-Force


	PB Agenda 4.2.24
	Planning Board 3-7-2024 meeting minutes draft
	Initial Zoning - 75 Cole Road
	Sign Regulations
	Sign Regulations.pdf
	Sign Litigation_ A Brief Analysis of Re...pdf
	On-Premises and Off-Premises Signs_ An ...pdf

	Short-Term Rentals
	Short Term Rentals 4.2.24.pdf
	Short Term Rental Definitions.pdf
	Weaverville STR final (002).pdf
	Next Steps





